
 

 

BY ELECTRONIC MAIL   

 

August 11, 2025 

 

Mr. Orlando Rivera Berríos 

Executive Director  

Office of Management and Budget 

 

Dear Mr. Rivera Berríos: 
 

We write in response to your letter dated August 4, 2025, in which you request approval for the 

proposed distribution of funds to municipalities for the “Ama de Llaves” program. The Certified 

Fiscal Year 2026 Commonwealth Budget (the “FY2026 Commonwealth Budget”) allocates $15 

million to support municipalities to provide social well-being “Ama de Llaves” services subject to 

the Oversight Board’s review and approval of a proposed distribution plan.  

 

Pursuant to the FY2026 Commonwealth Budget and based on compliance with the applicable 

requirements, the Oversight Board authorizes the proposed distribution of $15 million as detailed 

in Exhibit A. 

 

The Oversight Board understands the challenges municipalities face in providing social well-being 

services for the eligible population, including but not limited to nutrition, hygiene, personal care, 

home management, and health support. Based on the applicable criteria and requirements 

established for the social well-being “Ama de Llaves” program in Fiscal Year 2025, and the most 

recent demographic, income and fiscal capacity information available, an allocation was 

determined for 64 municipalities. The criteria to determine qualified municipalities and allocations 

takes into consideration population, income variables, and municipal fiscal capacity.  

 

All participating municipalities must comply with the eligibility requirements set forth in the fund 

agreement they will be signing with the Office of Management and Budget, as previously 

discussed with the Federation of Mayors and the Association of Mayors. 

 

We appreciate the Executive Branch’s support with this initiative and look forward to continuing 

our work together for the benefit of Puerto Rico’s municipalities. 
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Sincerely, 

 

 

Robert F. Mujica, Jr. 

Executive Director 

 

CC:       Mr. Elvin M. Rosado Morales  
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Exhibit A 

Social Well-being “Ama de Llaves” Services Fund Allocation by Qualifying Municipality 

 

Municipality Total Allocation 

Adjuntas $193,400 

Aguada $353,743 

Aguas Buenas $193,730 

Aibonito $162,556 

Añasco $190,621 

Arroyo $103,424 

Barceloneta $163,665 

Barranquitas $224,098 

Cabo Rojo $394,083 

Camuy $387,470 

Canóvanas $307,015 

Cataño $182,215 

Cayey $296,742 

Ceiba $90,947 

Ciales $175,077 

Cidra $276,172 

Coamo $253,570 

Comerío $226,056 

Corozal $320,590 

Culebra $6,596 

Dorado $197,871 

Fajardo $281,937 

Florida $106,870 

Guánica $114,010 

Guayama $195,170 

Guayanilla $138,095 

Gurabo $223,150 

Hatillo $315,831 

Hormigueros $150,626 

Isabela $392,176 

Jayuya $157,102 

Juana Díaz $457,072 

Juncos $202,590 
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Lajas $292,732 

Lares $324,123 

Las Marías $100,527 

Las Piedras $254,335 

Loíza $251,919 

Luquillo $200,664 

Manatí $397,886 

Maricao $55,077 

Maunabo $139,379 

Moca $293,816 

Morovis $259,431 

Naguabo $187,378 

Naranjito $312,522 

Orocovis $203,531 

Patillas $175,194 

Peñuelas $165,414 

Quebradillas $273,956 

Rincón $150,447 

Río Grande $399,857 

Sabana Grande $230,817 

Salinas $178,944 

San Germán $329,136 

San Lorenzo $347,880 

San Sebastián $463,013 

Santa Isabel $98,840 

Utuado $326,429 

Vega Alta $325,146 

Vieques $100,324 

Villalba $162,694 

Yabucoa $301,022 

Yauco $263,296 

Total $15,000,000 
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